
 

1 
 

Minutes 
Essex County Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
April 2, 2024 

7:00 P.M. 

A regular meeting of the Essex County Planning Commission was held on April 2, 2024, at the 
Essex County School Board Office, Tappahannock, Virginia. 

Present: 
David Jones – Chairman 
Angelo Stevens, Jr. – Vice Chairman 
Trent Taliaferro 
Jean Segar 
Stephen Walters 
Wright Andrews 
  
Absent: 
Scott Mundie 
 
Also present: 
Kelly McKnight – Building & Zoning Office Manager 
Brian Barnes – Zoning Administrator 
   
CALL TO ORDER 

David Jones, Chairman, called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 7:00 
pm. 

ROLL CALL 

Chairman Jones asked Ms. McKnight to call the roll.  A quorum was met. 

MEETING AGENDA 

Chairman Jones asked if any changes needed to be made to the agenda. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Jones asked if there were any corrections or additions needed for the March 5, 2024, 
minutes?  Commissioner Taliaferro made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. 
Commissioner Andrews seconded the motion. AYES: 6 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 

 

 



 

2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mr.  Joseph Bozman from 2575 Butylo came forward to speak during public comments.  He 
asked the question has the Board of Supervisors or the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
asked or directed the Planning Commission to create a committee to look into the LaGrange 
Industrial Park?  

Chairman Jones replied, “yes sir, they have.” 

Mr. Bozman then asked what has that committee done up until now? 

Chairman Jones said, “not much because they just instructed us to do it last month.” 

Mr. Bozman then asked, has anyone asked or directed this Planning Commission to slow roll or 
do nothing concerning LaGrange Industrial Park? 

Chairman Jones replied “no.” 

Mr. Bozman then said, “so it’s all on you then.” 

Chairman Jones said it is all on us. 

Mr. Bozman said that he would like this Planning Commission or the committee that was 
supposed to be formed to locate Mount Clement Drive on the ground or recommend to the 
Board of Supervisors that Mount Clement Drive be located on the ground.  This would solve a 
lot of problems.  

Mr. Bozman said that he was looking through the website and noticed that you have a planning 
use map and I noticed Mount Clement and a continuation of Mount Clement that starts and 
ends is in the middle and the area of contention is between the two.  

Chairman Jones said that we are becoming aware of a lot of things, and we are trying to get to 
the bottom of it. 

Mr. Bozman asked, “if there was any timeline on this?” 

Chairman Jones said no, Brian is going to speak to that in a little while.  He said that is actually 
item two on the agenda and if you hang around, you will hear what Brian has to say.  

PUBLIC HEARING 

None  

OLD BUSINESS  

Discuss section two of the Essex County Comprehensive Plan    

 



 

3 
 

The question Mr. Barnes had for the Planning Commission was are the tables and charts in the 
right order.  Carlos Disla helped with the graphs.  One thing he did was create an appendix in 
the rear of the document.  The tables have been moved to the back.   

Commissioner Walters asked if this was all 2020 data? 

Mr. Barnes said yes, it is. 

Commissioner Andrews said they might want to pull the economic section and put it close the 
section two.   

Mr. Barnes said that the Comprehensive Plan you have now feels very static and it has some 
good things in it, but it needs to have goals and objectives.  We want to make sure that the 
goals and objectives brought before the board are accurately driven.  

Mr. Barnes said that Tim Smith had been helping on this and is looking at other Comprehensive 
plans such as Page County.  Tim has been looking for Comprehensive Plans that was done in 
house and Mr. Barnes is going to bring a copy of it to show the Commissioners what it looks 
like.  That is a more modern Comprehensive Plan.  

Commissioner Walters said that Mr. Barnes mentioned that Carlos has a map of commuting 
distances and that would not be in this section but will be in the economic section.  We don’t 
want people to have to move out of the County. 

Commissioner Segar said that people are moving away from Essex County because they can 
make more money in other places.  

Chairman Jones said to the Planning Commission and Mr. Barnes if we choose to submit this for 
public hearing, is it ready to go? Is the intent to review it again this month and then put it to 
public hearing.  We will do section three next month and put section two to public hearing in 
June. In the meantime, we will start reviewing section three.   



 

4 
 

 

 



 

5 
 

                      

 

 



 

6 
 

 



 

7 
 

 



 

8 
 

 



 

9 
 

 



 

10 
 

 



 

11 
 

 



 

12 
 

 



 

13 
 

 



 

14 
 



 

15 
 



 

16 
 

 



 

17 
 

 



 

18 
 

 



 

19 
 

 



 

20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

NEW BUSINESS 

Board of Supervisors Directive regarding LaGrange Industrial Park 

Mr. Barnes said you just have some comments on this from Mr. Bozman.  Mr. Barnes put 
together a folder with the LaGrange Industrial Park.  He gave each Planning Commission 



 

21 
 

member a file folder with an initial history study with the first application from rezoning from 
1993.  He also included the minutes from the Board of Supervisors meeting from 1994. The text 
is going to tell the members a lot about the LaGrange Industrial Park and how it came to be.  
The next piece of document has documents that go back in time with the road issues.  (Copy 
will be attached).  In the meantime, Mr. Barnes is trying to get some of the plats for them.  Mr. 
Barnes said that he wants to get the water agreement between the town and the county. 

Chairman Jones said that there are letters from attorneys and several people, and he wanted to 
know if any of that has been resolved. 

Mr. Barnes said that he feels that it is unresolved. 

Chairman Jones said that if the issues are unresolved is the Board of Supervisors looking for the 
Planning Commission to make recommendations to resolve the issues. The harder ones are 
going to be the right of ways and do they exist. 

Commissioner Segar asked the question if this is coming about because of the Bray’s arena 
because of the Harris project that they wanted to put there because it may be opening up a can 
of worms.   

Mr. Barns said no, that’s a fair question to ask. 

Mr. Barnes said that a lot of this was triggered by that meeting in last June.  Mostly complaints 
about the Industrial Park. Mr. Barnes said that there is no timeline for this project.  You are just 
to work on it the best you can.  

Chairman Jones said that we should be thinking about the goals and objectives about this. 

Vice Chairman Stevens asked what the County attorney has to say about this? 

Mr. Barnes said he doesn’t have anything new from the current County Attorney.  If it is not in 
there, he will give the standing county attorney Sands Anderson what the current thinking is.  

Mr. Barnes said that he mentioned it last month but discussed a small utility scale solar project 
that has been talking to county staff and they want to come before the Planning Commission to 
do a 2232 determination.  Your new Zoning Ordinance allows for a solar project to come for a 
preliminary plan for a 2232 meeting.  2232 in case you don’t know refers to state 15.2-2232 and 
they include such things as sub stations, and they need to come before the Planning 
Commission to determine whether the location of that feature is in compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  You make that recommendation and that goes before the board then it 
goes in a file.  Sometimes it can be a public hearing.  Some counties make it a public hearing.  
Mr. Barnes got clarification from the county attorney, and he said yes, this can be just a public 
meeting where the Planning Commission will meet publicly with the applicant and look over 
their project and make a recommendation.   Then it will come back for a conditional use permit. 
For the May meeting we might have this small utility scale solar project before you. 



 

22 
 

Chairman Jones asked if there was anything else.  

 Commissioner Walters wanted to bring the Planning Commission up to date what was 
happening with the BZA.  

  

 ADJOURN 

Having no further discussion, a motion to adjourn was made and seconded. AYES: 6, NAYES: 0, 
ABSENT:1 

 

 

_____________________________ 

David Jones, Chairman 

   

 


